
MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U24222GAI 983PTC000532 

Registered Office : Panandiker Chambers, 1st Floor, M .L Furtado Road, 
Above ICICI Bank, Margao, Salcete, Margao Market, Goa - 403601 

Email address : marpol@marpolind.com 

NOTICE OF THE 37th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 37th Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of 
Marpol Private Limited will be held on Friday, September 25, 2020 at 3 p.m through 
Video Conferencing ("VC") or Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM"), to transact the 
following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended 31st March, 2020 and Profit & Loss for the period ended on that date 
together with the report of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rohit Pai Panandikar (DIN: 00559055), who 
retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment 

Date : August 27, 2020 
Place: Mumbai 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Marpol Private Limited 

V 
P.D Pai 
Chairman 
DIN:08115481 

j' 



NOTES: 

1.ln view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
("MCA") has vidc its circular dated May 5, 2020 read with circulars dated April 8, 
2020 and April 13, 2020 (collectively referred to as "MCA Circulars'') permitted 
the holding of the Annual General Meeting ("AGM") through VC/ OA VM, 
without physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act'') and MCA Circulars, the AGM 
of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM. 

2.Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the 
AGM is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote instead of 
himself/ herself and such a proxy need not be a member. Since this AGM is held 
pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OA VM, physical attendance of 
Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of 
proxies by the members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy 
Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. Attendance of members 
through VC or OA VM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum 
under sec I 03 of the Act. 

3.Corporate members are requested to send a scan copy (PDF/JPG format) of a duly 
certified Board resolution / authorization etc. authorizing their representatives to 
attend through VC / OA VM and vote at the meeting. 

4.Facility of joining the AGM through VC / OA VM shall open 15 minutes before the 
time scheduled for the AGM and will be available for Members on first come first 
basis and shall not be closed till the expiry of 15 minutes after such scheduled time. 
Instruction for joining and manner of participation through Microsoft Teams app 
will be shared by separate email before the AGM. 

5 .In compliance with the MCA Circulars and the Articles of Association, the 
Chairman may decide to conduct a vote by show of hands, unless a demand for poll 
is made by any member in accordance to sec 109 of the Act. Where a poll on any 
item is taken, members can then cast their vote on that resolution by sending emails 
through their registered email address to 0. ,cl wr3 rcvn~ro :1c.ccm 

6.Since the AGM will be held through VC / OA VM, the route map is not annexed in 
this Notice. 

Date: August 27, 2020 
Place: Mumbai 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 

~ . 
P.DPai 
Chairman 
DIN:08115481 



MARPOL PR 1IVATE UIM,ITED 

fothcMcmbefs, 
Marpol Private Limited. 

DIRECTORS' REPORT 

Your Directors have pleasure in submitting their 31" Annual Report of the Company together with the 
Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended 3 t•Marcta 2020 

I. FINANCIAL RESULTS : 

The Company's financial performance for the year under review along with previous year figures is given 
hereunder: 

(In Rs.) 

ftrdadln For tile year aded 3111 Portllt year ended 31• I 
Marc~2020 Marc , 2019 

1 

Net Sales /Income from 
Business Operations( net) 59,02,73,659 68,90,38,289 

Other Income 29, 767 4,63,175 
Total Income 59,03,03,426 68,95,01,463 

Total Expenditure 55,53,65,269 66~7,25,000 

Profit before Exceptional Item and Tu 3,49,38, 157 1'7,76,464 
Exceptional Item ' - - I 

Profit after Exceptional Item and Before Tax 3,49,-18, 157 1~,76,464 I 
Less Total tax expenses 59,71,322 29,24,536 I 

Net Profit after Tu 2,89,66,835 1,68,51,928 
I 

I Earnings per share Basic & Diluted 9.67 5.63 

2. REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERA TIO NS : 

Your Directors wish to present the details of Business operations <!one during the year under review: 

The net revenue from operations for the year ended on March 31, 2020 was Rs. 59,03,03,426 as 
compared to Rs. 68,95,01,463 for the previous year ended on March 31, 2019. 

The Profit before Exceptional Item and tax for the year ended on March 31, 2020 was 
Rs. 3,49,38,157 as compared to Rs. 1,97,76,464 for the year ended on March 31, 2019. The Profit after 
Tax stood at Rs.2,89,66,835 for the year ended on March 31, 2020 as compared to 
Rs. 1,68,51,928 for the previous year ended on March 31, 2019. 

As required in terms of Secretarial Standard (SS)-4, it is hereby confinned that there is no corporate 
insolvency resolution process initiated under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Cod~ 2016. 

3. TRANSFER TO RESERVE: 

No amount was transferred to the reserves during the financial year ended 31st March, 2020. 

4. DMDEND : 

No Dividend was declared for the current financial year due to conservation of Profits. 

5. DETAILS OF JOINT VENTURE/ ASSOCIATE OR SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES: 

There are no Joint Venture/ Associate or Subsidiary Companies of the Company as on 31st March, 2020. 
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MARPOL PRIVATE LIM ITED 

6. Dl~'l'AILS C)lt' FIUIJI) Irnrrnn 11\' AIJf>l1'01~: 

As JlCr nuditor.i' rc1,ort, no fhmd u/~ 143( 12) wcrv rcr,ortcd hy th,: uudflor. 

7. HOARD'S COMMl,N'I' ON Tim AIJDITOIIS' Int.PORT : 

·rhc ohscrvntinns of the Statutory Auc.lltorA. when rcoc.l to,iether with the relevant note,a to the account, 
and uc~ounting flollcics nrc ~elf c,cplonotory und do not cad) for ony further comment. 

8. MATl1:RIAL CIIANGES AND COMM11'Ml£N'I' 1ft ANV, AflftJ:C'l'IN<; THE flJNANCIAL 
POSITION 01; TIIE COMPANY WIIICII IIAVt.: occmuum JJETWKJtN nn: END OF THE 
FINANCIAL VEAi{ OF nm COMPANY TO WIIICII TUI.: flfNANCIAL STAn:MENTS 
RELATE AND Tim DAU: 014" Tim IUWOln AND CIIANGII, IN TJrn NATURE OF 
BllSINESS : 

There has been no material changes w1d commitment, affecting the financial position of the Company 
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial 
statements relate and the date of the report. Furthcrt there has been no change in the nature of business 
during the year 

9. DIRECTORS AND KEV MANAGERIAI.J PERSONNEL: 

There has been no change in the constitution of the Board during the year under review i.e. the structure 
oft.he Board remains the same. 

IO.CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 

(A) Consenration of energy-

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: The utilization of Electricity is continuously 
monitored and steps are taken to reduce the consumption. 

(ii) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: Nil 
(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipments: Nil 

(B) Technology absorption-

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption: 
As we are aware, Polyester Resin is at the heart of any pure polyester/fGIC and PP/Primid based 
powder system. Super-durable powder systems are known to have excellent QlN weathering 
properties and poor mechanical properties. The Automotive industry is slowly moving towards 
Powder Paints as its final top coat for small Vehicles. Marpol has done extensive research in 
creating a Super -Durable resin with excellent mechanical and weathering properties. Marpol is 
the only Company in the world today that has the capability of manufacturing Pure Polyester 
Super Durable Resin with exceHent mechanical properties (passing more than 184 kwcm ASTM 
on a white system) and excelJent retention of gloss at 20 degrees (more than 80% retention of gloss 
under stringent QUV 8313 exposure of 500 hours). This project was specifically undertaken for 
Tata Motors Dhwwad, India, where we have succeeded in becoming a key vendor for supply of 
the PP Super-durable powder. 

(ii) the benefits derived Jike product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution: 
The Automotive industry in India is growing at a fast pace. The need for high quality powder 
systems has significantly increased, as a result, we have focused on creating cost effective high 
end powders for automotive component manufacturers such as Gabriel India Ltd. (Anand Group), 
BMW motorrad through TVS Motors etc. In order to achieve cost effective quality powder 
systems, we have further improved our PP TGIC (93/7) resin to pass the stringent 100 kg/cm 
ASTM impact in our regular pure polyester powder systems without affecting the cost structure of 
the resin system. This has helped us provide better quality products to the high end Automotive 
market at a very competitive price. 
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MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the lust three yenr!i reckoned from the heginning 
of the 1inancin1 ycnr) : NA 

(a) the details of technology imrortcd: No technology is imported however equipments are 
imported on n regular bnsis. 
(b) the year of import: NA 
(cl whether the technology hccn fully uhsorbcd: NA 
(d) if not fully absorbed. areas where absorption has not taken place. and the reasons thereof: NA 
and 

(iY) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Nil 

11. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

The total imports during the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 were Rs. 9,03,48,049 
compared to Rs. 12. 74. 72,756 during the last financial year. The total earning in foreign currency 
during the financial year was NIL as compared to Rs. 15,95,633 during the previous financial year. 

12. STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK 
MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY: 

The Company does not have any Risk Management Policy as the elements of risks threatening the 
Company's existence are very minimaJ. Necessary internal checks and controls are duly installed. 
The management reviews these checks and controls with reference to their findings and 
accordingly remedial actions are taken by the Management in the best interests of the Company 
and its employees and stakeholders. In the opinion of the Board of Directors there are no elements 
of risk currently which may threaten the existence of the Company. 

13. DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON 
ITS CORPORA TE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES: 

The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives 
as the said provisions are not applicable. 

14. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER 
SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

There are no Loans / Advances , Guarantees or Investments made under section 186 of the 
Companies Act 2013. 

15. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED 
PARTIES: 

In terms of the provisions of Section 188( 1) of the Act read with the Companies (Meetings of 
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, all contracts/ arrangements/ transactions entered into by the 
Company with its related parties, during the year under review, were in the ordinary course of 
business of the Company and on an arm's length basis. There were no material Related Party 
transactions during the year. Accordingly, Form No. AOC-2, prescribed under the provisions of 
Section 134(3)(h) of the Act and Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, for disclosure 
of details of Related Party Transactions, which are ''not at ann's length basis" and also which are 
"material and at ann's length basis", is not provided as an annexure to this Report as it is not 
applicable. 
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• COMPANY'S POLICY Rli:LATING TO DIRJ<:CTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF 
REMUNERATION AND DISCIIAIWIO: OJ<' 1'111<:IR l>IJTIF,S 

l:hc p~ovisions of Section 1711( I) refuting to constitution of Norn ination and Remuneration 
Committee nrc not upplicnhlc to the Company und hence the Company ha~ not dcvi~cd any policy 
relating to appointment of Directors, payment of Munugcriul remuneration, Director<; 
qualifications. positive attributes, independence of Directors and other related matter~ a~ provided 
under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 20 I J. 

17. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

The extracts of Annual Return pursuant lo the provisions of Section 92 read with Ruic 12 of the 
Companies (Management and administration) Rules, 2014 is furnished in Annuure A in Form 
MGT-9 and is attached lo this Report. 

18. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR UNDER 
REVIEW: 

During the year 2019-20 under review, 5 (five) Board meetings were held on April 26, 2019, 
June 7, 2019, July 25, 2019, October 22, 2019 and February I, 2020. 

19. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby 
submits its responsibility Statement: 

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been 
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

(b) The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affitirs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the Profit of the company for 
that period; 

( c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(d) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 

(e) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

20. DETAIL OF FRAUD AS PER AUDITORS REPORT: 

There is no fraud in the Company during the F.Y. ended 31st March,2020. This is also being 
supported by the report of the auditors of the Company as no fraud has been reported in their audit 
report for the F. Y. ended 31st March, 2020. 

21. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES : 

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company and hence Fonn 
AOC- I is not provided as it is not applicable to the Company. 

22. DEPOSITS: 

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review. 
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MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 

lJ. DECLARATION OF INDEPENln:NT l)IREC'l'ORS : 

The provisions of Section 149 pcrtoining to the appointment of Jndcpcndent Directors do not apply 
to the Company. 

24• DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL 
MECHANISM: 

The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the 
Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 is not applicable to the Company. 

25. DETAILS Oft SIGNU'ICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE 
REGULA TORS OR COURTS: 

There are no significant material orders passed by the courts/regulators or tribunals impacting the 
going concern status and company's operations in future. 

26. SHARES: 

The paid up Equity Share Capital as at 3 J st March, 2020 stood at Rs. 2,99,52,000. During th_e year 
under review. the Company did not issue any Equity Shares. Further, the Company has not tssued 
any convertible securities or shares with differential voting rights nor has granted any stock 
options or sweat equity or warrants or bonus. There has been no change in the capital structure of 
the Company during the year. 

27. EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR 
ADVERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS : 

There were no qua1ifications, reservation's or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report. 

28. CONSTITUTION OF COMMITTE~ - SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE : 

The Company has constituted the internal complaints committee under the sexual harassment of 
women at workplace (prevention, prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the, company has 
complied with the provisions of the same. . 

29. COST RECORDS : 

The.maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of 
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company. 

30. STATUTORY AUDITORS: 

J· 

i' 
? 

Mis. Ganesh ~aivajna & Co., Chartered Accountants(Firm Regis~on No. 103054W), being the 
statutory aud~tors of the Company shall be holding office until ~e conclusion of the Annual 
General Meetmg of the Company ending on March 31, 2024. ·· 

31. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

The Company does not have any subsidiaries so there is no need to prepare consolidated financial 
statement for the F. Y. 2019-20. 
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MARPOl PRIVATE LIMITED 

32. PARTICULARS OF EMrtOVEES: 
.. 

No employee was in receipt of remuneration in excess of the limits prc[icrihed ~n-cJcr Companie<t 
Act, 20JJ read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Pcrsonncf J 
Rules, 2014 and hence the prc.<;crihcd in formatic n no{ required to he given. 

JJ .. ACkNOWLEDGEMENT : 

Your Direct< rs place on rccorcJ their sincere thanks to Bankers, Employees, Busines Associates. 
Auditor. and various Government Authorities for their continued support extended to the 
Company. · 

Date : April 30. 2020 
Place: Mumbai 
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FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE .BOARD 

MARPOL PRIVATE LIMIT£D 

P.D Pai 
Chairman 
DIN: 08115481 
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Annexure-A 
Form No. MGT-9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
[Pursuant to 

8 
• ns on the financial year ended on 31/03/2020 

ect10n 92(3) of the Companies Act, 20/3 and nJlc 12( 1) of the Companies (Management 

and Administration) Rules, 20 J 4 J 

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DlfTAILS 
I. - :., : 

i. CIN: 
-

U24222OA J 983PTC000532 

- -
ii. Registration Date 05/04/1983 

-
iii. Name of the Company Marpol Private Limited 

iv. Category / Sub-Category of the Company Limited by Shares 
Company 

v. Address of the Registered office and 1st Floor, Panandiker Chambers, M.L. Furtado 
contact details Road, Margao, Goa - 40360 f. 

Tel +91 8322713056 
Fax +91 832 2733124 
Email:- marrol@1m1rrol ind. om 

vi. Whether listed company: No 
vii. Name, Address and Contact details of NA 

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTNITIES OF THE COMPANY 
All the business activities contributing IO % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be 
stated:-

SI.No. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover of 
products I services Product/ service the company 

I Manufacturers of Powder Coatings 2022 100% 

UL PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES-

s. NAMEAND CIN/GLN HOLDING/ %of Applicable 
No. ADDRESS OF SUBSIDIARY/ shares Section 

THE COMPANY ASSOCIATE held 

I Kansai Nerolac L24202MH1920PLC0008 Holding 100 2 (46) 
Paints Ltd. 25 
Nerolac House, 
Ganpatrao Kadam 
Marg, 
Lower Parel, 
Mumbai-400013. 
Contact No: 022-
2499-2807 

,J---
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II 
I 

IV. SllAR.E lfOLOING P 
Equity) Al'TERN (Eqult Sh 

Y L_ are Capital llreakup n~ percentaae or Total 

i) Catqo 
1, 13'-wlse Share Ho/din 

~ 1l 
Category of N -
Shareholders tt of Shares held at the beginning or No. of Shar~ held at the end of the 

~ -•1. eyear 
year Chan 

1e 
durin 
,g ,the 
year I --

I 
I 

I Demat Physica Total %of Demat Physical Total Ofo Of 
I Total Total 

Shares Shar 
es 

A. Promoters -
(1) Indian 

J g) Individual/ - - - - - -
I HUF 

h) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
i) State Govt - - - - - - - - -
j) Bodies Corp. - 2995200 299520 100.00 2995200 299520 100.0 -

0 0 0 
I 
I 

-k) Banks / FI - - - - .. -

1) Any Other .... - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total - 2995200 299520 100.00 - 2995200 299520 100.0 -
(A) (1):- 0 0 0 

I 

(2)Foreign - - - .. - - - -

a) NRis- - - - - - - - -
Individuals 
b) Other - - - ... - - - .. - - I 

Individuals 
c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - - I 

d) Banks / FI - - .. - - - - - -
e)Any - - - - - - - - -
Other .... 

I 

~ I 

I 

I I 



Sub-total (A) 
(2):-
Total 
shareholding 
of Promoter 
(A)= 
(A)(l)+(A)(2) 

B. Public 
Shareholding 
I . Institutions 

a) Mutual 
Funds 
b) Banks / FI 

c) Central Govt -
d) State Govt( s) -

e) Venture -
Capital Funds 

f)Insurance -
Companies 
g) Fils -
h) Foreign -
Venture Capital 
Funds 
i) Others 
(specify) 
Sub-total 
(B)(1):-
2. Non­
Institutions 
a) Bodies Corp. -
i) Indian 
ii) Overseas -
b) Individuals -
i) Individua1 -
shareholders 
holding 
nominal share 
capital uptoRs. 
1 Iakh 

- - -

.. - -

- - -
.. - -

I 

- - -
- - -
- - -

i--::::---=--~-:---::---+---+----+-----.+-c..---+--___,1------____,_ __ _._ __ ~_---J I 
ii) IndividuaJ - - .. .. _ .. _ _ _ , 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal share 
capita] in 
excess of Rs 1 
lakh 
c) Others 

I (specify) 

I 
I 



'" b-.total 
l • 

(BX2):- l -
Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B}=1B)(1)+ 

l \B:K_2) 
C. Shares held 
by Custodian 
fotGDRs& 
ADRs 

Grand Total l~OO 299520 100 
2995200 29952 100 

00 
(A+B+C) 0 

Notes: 

Beginning of the year -> As on I st April, 20 I 9; End of the year-> As on 31st March. 2020; and 

Owing the year~ From 1st April. 2019 ~o 31st Man:h, 2020 

• 

(ii) SJ,ard,oltlilrg of Promo/US 

Sr Shardtolder Shareholding at the beginning 
Shareholding at the end of the 

~o 's Name of the year 
year 

. 

I No.of %of •t.of No.of o/.of •1.0-r •1. 

I 
Shares total Shares Shares total Shares change 

I Sha.res Pledged/ Share Pledged/ in 

,1 oftbe encumbere sof encumbere share 

compa d to total the d to total boldin 

ny shares comp shares g 

any daring 
the 
year 

II 

l. I Kansai 2995200 100 - 2995200 100 ,- 100 

Nerolac 
Paints 
Limited I 

j 

. Notes • 

~ of the year-> As on 1st April. 2019; End of the year-> As on 31st Man:b, 2020; and 
During the year -> From I st April, 2019 upto 31st Marcil, 2020 , 



(iii) Change in Pro 
tnoters' Shareholdi r-=--- ng ease specify, If there Is no change) Sr. ~ r-:--__ me of the 

(pl 

No. sbarehold Shareholding at 
ers the beginning of Datewise increase/ Cumu.lative Shareholding 

decrease in during the year the year (01-04- shareholding during 
l019)/ Atthe end the year 
of the year the end 
of the year (31-03-
2020) 

.......__ 

No. of %of Date Reason for No. of % ,of total 
shares total increase/ sha1res shares of the 

shares decrease company 
ofthe 
compan 
y 

NO CHANGE IN THE PROMOTERS SHAREHOLDING 
I 

{iv) Shareholding Pattem of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of 
GDRs and ADRs): 

r Sr. I 

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding 
No. beginning of the year during the year 

For Each of the Top No. of shares % of total No. of shares o/o of total 
10 Shareholders shares of the shares of the 

company company 

At the beginning of the NIL - - -
year 

Date wise Increase / NIL - - -
Decrease in Share 
holding during the year 
specifying the reasons 
for increase / decrease 
( e.g. allotment I transfer 
/ bonus / sweat equity 
etc): 

At the End of the year ( NIL 
or on the date of 
separation, if separated 
during the year) 

Notes: 

Beginning of the year -> As on 1st April, 2019; End of the year-> As on 31st March, 2020; and 
During the year -> From I st April, 2019 upto 31st March, 2020 · 

V 
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M Shareholding of Dlrecto 
rs 0nd Key Manager/a/ Personnel· -

SI. No. I 
1 

Shareholdlng at the I Cumulatlve Shareholdlng 

- beginning of the year during the year 

For Each or the No. of shares % oftotaJ No. of shares - ~ oftotaJ 
Directors and KMP shares of the shares of the 

company company 
-

1. Prashant D. Pai -
At the beginning of 1 - 1 -
the year 
(l share held by 
Kansai Ncrolac Paints 
Limited jointly held 
with Mr. Prashant D. 
Pai) 
Date wise increase/ - - - -
decrease in 

I shareholding during 

I the year specifying the 
reasons for increase/ 
decrease (egs. 
Allotment/ transfer/ 
bonus/ sweat equity 
etc) 

I I At the end of the year I 1 i - 1 -

Notes: 

Beginning of the year -> As on I st April, 2019; End of the year-> As on 31st March, 2020; 
and During the year-> From I st April, 2019 upto 31st March, 2020 

V. INDEBTEDNESS 
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 

Indebtedness at 
tile beginning of 
the financial 
year 

ii) Interest due but 
not paid 

iii) Interest 
accrued but not 
due 

Secured Loans 
excluding 
de osits (in Rs.) 
10,50,05,546 

10,50,05,546 

Unsecured 
Loans (in Rs.) 

NIL 

NIL 

Deposits (in Rs.) 

NIL 

NIL 

Total 
Indebtedness (in 
Rs.) 
10,50,05,546 

10,50,05,546 

-



NIL Nit 1 O,.'JO,OS,546 

Change in 3,69,99,279 
Indebtedness NIL NIL 3,69,99,'Zl9 

during the 
financial year 
□ Addition 
l l Reduction 

Net Change 3,69,99,279 ~ - 3,69,99,'Z/9 
NIL 

Indebtedness at 14,20,04,825 NIL NIL 14,20,0C,825 

the 
end of the 
financial year 
i) Principal 
Amount 
ii) Interest due but 
not paid 
iii) Interest 
accrued but not 
due 
Total (i+ii+ili) 14,20,04,825 NIL NIL 14,20,()4,8~ 

VL REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 

I Sr. 1 Particulars of 1 Name of MD/WTD/ Total Amount 

Manager no. Remuneration 

Mr. Rohit Pai Panandiker 

I. Gross salary Rs. 24,81,192 Rs. 24,81,192 

(a) SaJary as per 
provisions contained 
in section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961 
(b) Value of 
perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income-tax Act, 1961 
(c) Profits in lieu of 
salary under section 
17(3) Income-tax Act, 
1961 

12 Stock Option NIL -
-

/ 3 I Sweat Equity NIL -

V 



Commission 
NIL - as % of profit 

---

- others, specify ... 

Others, pJease specify 
(HRA, LTA Rs. 5, 13,636 Rs. 5, 13,636 

Contributio~. To p F 
Medical Expenses · ' 

Total Rs. 29,94,828 Rs. 29,94,828 

Ceiling as per the Act NIL 

B. Remuneration to other Directors: 
-

-

Sr. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total 
Amount 

no. 

- --
I. Independent Directors NIL - - - -

Fee for attending board / 
committee meetings 
Commission 
Others, please specify 

Total (I) 

NIL - - - -
Other Non-Executive 
Directors 

Fee for attending board/ 
committee meetings 
Commission 
Others, please specify 

TotaJ (2) NIL - - - -
.,. 

Total (B)=(l +2) NIL - - - -

Total Managerial NIL - - - -
Remuneration 

Overall Ceiling as per the Act - - - --

i 



C REMllNERA Tl 
MDIMANAGE,v,:!,.: 7YJ KEY MANA<UsRUl PERSONNEL OTIIBR Tl/AN 

-
SI. --

Pnrticulnrs of Koy Mnnogcrlnl Personnel _!lo. _ , Rcmuncmtion - Total --- - CFO CEO Company 
Sccrctnry 

-- -

I Gros..~ snlnry 
- 1= Nil - -(n) Snlnry ns 

1>cr pro vi sf ons 
l'Ontaincd in 
section 17( I ) 
ofthe Jncome-
tn.x Act, 1961 
(b) Value of 
perquisites u/s 
17(2) Income-
tax Act, 1961 
(c) Profits in 
lieu of salary 
under section 
17(3) Income-
tax 
Act" 1961 

2 Stock Option NIL NIL NIL 

J Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL 

' Commission NIL NIL NIL 
- as% of 

profit 
- others, 
specify ... 

5 Others, please NIL NIL NIL 
specify 
Total 

I I 

VIL PENAL TIES/ PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

There were no penalties, punishments, compounding of offences for the year ended March 31, 2020. 

For and on behB_ 

Mumbai, Date : April 30, 2020 

P.D Pai 
Chairman 

DIN: 08115481 



CA. Ganesh. M. Oaivajna B c om .. F.C.A 

CA. Naveen. G. Daivajna B Com .FCA . DISA 

CA. Sonam S. Daivajna a .com., AC.A 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Members of M/s. Marpol Private Limited 

Report on the standalone Financial Statements 

.Opinion 

GANESH DAIVAJNA & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

We have audited the accompanying standalone Financial Statements of M/s. Marpol 
Private Limited which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of 
Profit and Loss, and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
finan cial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesa id standalone financial statements give the information req uired by the Act in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 
2020, and profit/loss, and it s cash flows for the year ended o n that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SA's) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under t hose Standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities fo r the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules the reunder, and we have fulfilled o ur other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these re quirements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company' s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ("t he Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of t he financial position, fina ncial 
performance, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified unde r section 133 
of the Act. Th is responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregu larities; selection afia ap · ·on of 

o~' 
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GANESH DAIVAJNA & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 

.to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial 
reporting process 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards of 
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have be"en kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The reports on the accounts of the branch offices of the Company audited under 
Section 143(8) of the Act by branch auditors have been sent to us and have been 
properly dealt with by us in preparing this report. 



GANESH DAIVAJNA & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

d} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

e) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 
March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 {2) of the Act. 

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in "Annexure B". 

h} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 

the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 26; 

2. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

3. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to 
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

Place: Margao, Goa 
Date: 30 th April 2020 

For Ganesh Daivajna & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn.No. 103054W 

Naveen G. Daivaj a 
Partner 

M.No.126231 

UDIN:20126231AAAACF7720 



GANESH DAIVAJNA & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Annexure A to the Auditors' Report 

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the 
Company on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, we 
report that: 

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. 

(b) As informed to us the fixed assets have been physically verified by the 
management regularly which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to size of 
the Company and the nature of the assets. No material discrepancies were noticed 
on such verification. 

( c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable 
properties are held in the name of the Company. 

(ii) The inventory has been physically verified by the management at regular intervals 
during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as 
compared with the book records were not material and have been dealt with in the 
books of accounts. 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us the Company has not 
granted unsecured loans to the Companies, firms or other parties, maintained under 
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence reporting under Clause (iv) of 
Paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act, 
with respect to the loans and investments made. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits in contravention to Section 73 & 74 of 
Companies Act 2013. No order has been passed by the Company Law Board or 
National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any 
other Tribunal in this regard. 

(vi) The Companies Act, 2013 has prescribed the maintenance of cost records under 
Section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company and the 
company has been following the same. 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / J1ccrued in the 
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, 
ESIC fund, income tax, OST and other material statutory dues have been regularly 
deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As 
explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of employees' state 
insurance and duty of excise. 
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According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable 
in respect of provident fund, ESIC fund, income tax, GST, cess and other material statutory 
dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of duty of 
customs which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any 
dispute. 

(viii) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution, 
banks, government or debenture holders during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable. Except cash credit account having limit 20 
crores. 

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable. 

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the 
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or 
reported during the course of our audit. 

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has paid / provided for 
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by 
the provisions of Section 197, read with Schedule V to the Act. 

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are 
in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of 
such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as 
required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year. 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non­
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 
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(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act 1934. 

Place: Margao, Goa 
Date: 30th April 2020 

For Ganesh Daivajna & Co 
Chartered Accountants 

:103054W 

UDIN:20126231AAAACF7720 
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Internal Financial Controls 

Under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") We have 
audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Marpol Pvt Ltd (''the Company") 
as of 31st March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financ\al 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal Financial Controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and 
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the -audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal · financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's ···internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting. 
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Meaning oflnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that; 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations oflnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting 
were operating effectively as at 31st March 2020, based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Place: Margao, Goa 
Date: 30th April 2020 

For Ganesh Daivajna & Co 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN:103054W 

Na 
Partne 

M.No.126231 
UDIN: 2012 62 31AAAACF772 0 











MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
\OTES ro THE FI\A \ CIAL STATE\IE\ TS FOR THE YEAR E\DEO 31 ST \'IARCH, 2020 

Note A : Corporate Information 

\llarpol Private Limited (the ·company') is a private limited company domiciled in India and 
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act. The registered office of the Company is 
located at Margao, Goa. The Company Is principally engaged in the manufacturing of Powder. 

The Financial Statements for t he year ended 31st March. 2020 have been reviewed and approved 
by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 30th April, 2020. 

NQttJl..;. Basis of preparation 

Statement of compliance 

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules , 2015 notified under Section 
133 of Companies Act, 201 3, {the 'Act') and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

Details of the Company' s Accounting Policies are included in Note 1. 

2 Functional and Presentation currency 

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), wh ich is also the Company's 
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest rupees, unless otherwise 
indicated. 

3 Basis of measurement 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for Investments 
in mutual funds, non- trade equity shares, bonds and provision for employee defined benefit 
plans. 

4 Use of estimates and Judgements 

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimat ion uncertainty: 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the ind AS requires management to 
make j udgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and 
the reported amounts of assets, liabllltles and disclosures as at date of the financial stat ements 
and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenses for the years presented. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are 
cons idered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different 
assumptions and conditions. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing bas is. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in t he period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period, or In the period of the revision and future periods if the revisio n affects 
both current and future periods. 

i) CrlticalJudgments 

In the process of applying t he Company' s accounting policies, management has made the 
following j udgments, which have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the 
financial statements. 
Discount rate used to determine the carrying amount of the Company's defined benefit obligation. 
In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management 
cons iders the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of 
the post- employment benefit obligation. 
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Contingences and Commitments 

In the normal course of business. contingent liabilities may arise from litigations and other claims 
against the Company. Where the potential liabilities have a low probability of crystallising or are 
very difficult to quantify reliably. we treat them as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are 
disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the financial statements. Although t here can be 
no assurance regarding the f inal outcome of the legal proceedings, we do not expect them to 
have a material ly adverse impact on our financial position or profitability. 

ii) Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at 
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below: 

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment 
As described in Note 1 (3)(c), the Company reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values 
of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. During the current financial 
year, the management determined that there were no changes to the useful lives and residual 
values of the property, plant and equipment. 

Allowances for Doubtful Debts 
The Company makes allowances for doubtful debts based on an assessment of the recoverability 
of trade and other receivables. The identification of doubtful debts equ ires use of judgments and 
estimates. Where the expectat ion Is different from the original estimate, such difference will 
impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivab les and doubtful debts expenses In the 
period in which such estimate has been changed. 

Allowances for Inventories 
Management reviews the Inventory age listing on a periodic basis. This review Involves comparison 
of the carrying value of the aged inventory items with the respective net realizable value. The 
purpose is to ascertain whether an allowance is required to be made in the financial statements 
for any obsolete and slow-moving Items. Management is satisfied that adequate allowance for 
obsolete and slow- moving inventories has been made in the financial statements. 

Liability for Sales Return 
In making judgment for liability for sales return, the management considered the detailed criteria 
for the recognition of revenue from the sale of goods set out in Ind AS 18 and in particular, 
whether the Company had transferred to the buyer the significant risk and rewards of ownership 
of the goods. Fol lowing the detailed quantification of the Company's liability towards sales return, 
the management is satisfied that significant risk and rewards have been transferred and that 
recognition of the revenue In the current year Is appropriate, in conjunction with the recogn ition 
of an appropriate liability for sales return. 
Accruals for estimated product returns, which are based on historical experience of actual sa les 
returns and adjustment on account of current market scenario is considered by Company to be 
reliable estimate of future sales returns . 
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Note Ill: Significant Accounting Policies 

Classification of Assets and Liabilities 

Schedule Ill to the Act, requires assets and liabilities to be classified as either Current or Non­
current. 

(a) An asset shall be class ified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

(i) it is expected to be realised in, o r is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's 
normal operating cycle; 

(ii) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

(iii) it is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date; or 

(iv) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle 
a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. 

(b) All assets other than current assets shall be classified as non- current. 

(c) A liability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

(i) it is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle; 

(ii) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

(iii) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or 

(iv) the Company does not have an uncondit ional right to defer settlement of the l iability for 
at least twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option 
of the counterparty, resul t in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect 
its classification. 

(d) All liabilities other t han current liabilities shall be classified as non-current. 

2 Operating Cycle 

An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realisation in cash or cash equivalents. The Company has ascertained the operating cycle as 
twelve months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and 
liabilities. 

3 Property, Plant and Equipment 

(a) Recognition and Measurement 

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is init ially 
measured at its cost and then carried at the cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated Impairment, If any. 

The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises its purchase price, i ncluding 
import duties and non- refundable purchase taxes, after deducting t rade discounts and 
rebates and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition 
necessary for it t o be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. The 
initial est imate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on 
which it is located is included in the cost of an item of property, plant and eq uipment. 

The cost of a self-constructed item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises the cost of 
materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to 
working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the 
item and restoring the site on which it is located. 

Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment under construction are disclosed as Capital Work-in­
progress . Item of Capital Work- in-progress is carried at cost using the principles of valuation 
of item of property, plant and equipment t ill it is ready for use, the manner in which intended 
by management. 
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Note 111: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.) 

3 Property, Plant and Equipment (contd.) 

(b) Subsequent Expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company. 

(c) Depreciation 

The depreciable amount of an Item of Property, Plant and Equipment is allocated on a 
systematic basis over Its useful life. The Company provides depreciation on the straight line 
method. The Company believes that straight line method reflects the pattern In which the 
asset's future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company. Based on 
internal technical evaluation. the management believes useful lives of the assets are 
appropriate. The depreciation method is reviewed at least at each financial year-end and, if 
there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future 
economic benefits embodied in the asset, the method is changed to reflect the changed 
pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate in accordance 
with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes In Accounting Estimates and Errors . 

Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment with a cost that Is significant In relation 
to the total cost of the Item Is depreciated separately. 

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss 
unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset. 

The residual value and the useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at each financial year-end 
and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change{s) Is accounted for as a change 
in an accounting estimate In accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors. The estimated useful lives for the current and comparat ive 
periods are as follows: 

Useful Lives Useful Lives 

Asset Class 
{in years) {In years) 

- as per Companies - as estimated by the 
Act, 2013 Company 

Buildinas 30- 60 30-60 
Plant and EQuloments 10-20 10-25 
Furniture and Fixtures 10 10 
Vehicles 10 10 
Office Equipments 5 5 
Computers 3-6 3-6 
Assets for Scientific Research 10-20 20 
Assets on Ooeratlnq Lease NA 5 

Depreciation on additions {disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from {upto) the date 
on which asset is ready for use {disposed off). 

Oepreciation charge for the year is displayed as depreciation an the face of Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 

Leasehold lands and leasehold Improvements are amortised over the primary period of lease. 

{d) Disposal 

The carrying amount of an Item of Property, Plant and Equipment Is derecognlsed on disposal 
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss 
arising from the derecognitian of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is included in 
Statement of Profit and Loss when the Item Is de recognised. 
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Note Ill: Significant A ccounting Policies (contd.) 

4 Investment Property 

(a) Recognition and Measurement 

Land or building held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both rather than for use in 
the production or supply of goods or services or for admi nistrative purposes; or sale in t he 
ordinary course of business is recogn ised as Investment Property . Land held fo r a currently 
undetermined future use is also recognised as Investment Property. 

An investment property is measured initially at i ts cost . The cost of an investment · property 
compr ises its pu rchase price and any directly attributable expenditure. After initial recognition , 
the Company carries t he investment property at the cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment, if any. 

(b) Depreciation 

After initial recog nition, the Company measures all o f its investment property in accordance 
with Ind AS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment requirements for cost model. The depreciable 
amount of an item of investment property is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life. 
The Company provides depreciation on the straight line method. The Company believes that 
straight l ine method reflects the pattern in which the asset's future economic benefits are 
expected to be consumed by t he Company. Based on internal technical evaluation, the 
management believes useful lives of the asset s are appropriate. The depreciation method is 
reviewed at least at each financial year-end and, if there has been a significant change in the 
expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset, the 
method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a change 
in an accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors . 

The depreciation charge fo r each period is generally recog nised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

The residual value and the useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at each financial year-end 
and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change(s) is accounted for as a change 
in an accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Pol icies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors. The estimated useful l ives for the current and comparative 
peri ods are as follows: 

Useful Lives Useful Lives 

Asset Class 
(in years) (in years) 

- as per Companies - as estimated by 
Act, 20 13 the Company 

Build inos 30-60 30- 60 

(c) Fair Value 

Fair value of investment property is based on a valuation by an independent valuer who holds 
a recognised and relevant profess ional qualification and has recent experience in the location 
and category of the investment property being valued. The fai r value of investment property is 
disclosed in t he Note 3. 

(d) Gain or loss on Disposal 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an Investment Property is recognised in the Statement o f Profit 
and Loss. 
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Note Ill: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.) 

5 Other Intangible Assets 

(a) Recognition and Measurement 

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. 
Intangible assets are initially measured at its cost and tl1en carried at the cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment, if any. 

Research and Development 

Research is original and planned investigation undertaken with the prospect of gaining new 
scientific or technical knowledge and understanding. Expenditure incurred on research of an 
internal project is recognised as an expense in · Statement of Profit and Loss, when it is 
incurred. 

Development is the application of research find ings or other knowledge to a plan or design for 
the production of new or substantially improved materials, devices, products, processes, 
systems or services before the start of commercial production or use. An intangible asset 
arising from development is recognised if, and only if, the following criteria are met: 

(a) it is technically feasibile to complete the intangible asset so that it will be available for 
use or sale. 
(b) the Company intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it. 
(c) the Company has ability to use or sell the intangible asset. 
(d) the Company can demonstrate how the intangible asset wi ll generate probable future 
economic benefits. 
(e) the Company has adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the 
development and to use or sell the Intangible asset. 
(f) the Company has ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the 
intangible asset during its development. 

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. 

(b) Subsequent Expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits 
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.All other expenditure, including expenditure 
on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as 
incurred. 

(c) Amortisation 

The Company amortises Other Intangible Assets on the straight fine method. The Company 
believes that straight line method reflects the pattern in which the asset's future economic 
benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company. The amortisation method Is reviewed 
at least at each financial year-end and, if there has been a significant change In the expected 
pattern of consum ption of the future economic benefits embodied In the asset, the method Is 
changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a change In an 
accounting estimate In accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors. 

The residual value and the useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at each financial year-end 
and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change(s) Is accounted for as a change 
in an accounting estimate In accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors. The estimated useful lives as estimated by management are 
as follows: 

Asset Class 
Useful Lives (in years) 

- as estimated b the Com any 
Software 3 Years 
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Note Iii: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.) 

6 Non-current assets or disposal group held for sale 

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities are classified as held for 
sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through 
continuing use. 

Such assets, o r disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount 
and fair value less costs to sell. Any resultant loss on a disposal group is allocated first to 
goodwill, and then to remain ing assets and liabilities on pro rata basis, except that ·no loss is 
allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefit assets, and 
biological assets, which continue to be measured in accordance with the Company's other 
accounting policies. Losses on initial classificat ion as held for sale and subsequent gains and 
losses on re-measurement are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Once assets class ified as held- for-sale, then Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property 
and Other Intangible Assets are no longer required to be depreciated or amortised. 

7 Employee Benefits 

(a) Short-term Employee Benefits: 

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are 
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to 
be paid e.g., under short- term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation to pay th is amount as a res ult of past service provided by the employee, and the 
amount of obligation can be estimated reliably. 

(b) Post-Employment Benefits: 

Defined contribution plans 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays 
fixed contributions Into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to 
pay further amounts. 

(I) Provident and Family Pension Fund 

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to rece ive post employment benefits in 
respect of provident and family pension fund, in which both the employees and the Company 
make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the employees' eligible salary 
(currently 1 2% of employees' eligible salary). The contributions are made to the Regional 
Provident Fund Commission er (RPFC) which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
as incurred. 

In respect of contribution to RPFC, the Company has no further obligations beyond making 
the contribution, and hence, such employee benefit plan is classified as Defined Contribution 
Plan. The Company's contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 
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Note Iii: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.) 

7 Employee Benefits (contd.) 

(b) Post-Employment Benefits (contd.): 

Defined contribution plans (contd.) 

(II) Superannuation 

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive post employment benefits in 
respect of superannuation fund in which the Company makes annual contribution at a 
specified percentage of the employees ' eligible salary (currently 15% of employees 'eligible 
salary). The contributions are made to t he Life Insurance Corporat ion of India (LIC). 
Superannuat ion is classified as Defined Contribution Plan as the Company has no further 
obligations beyond making t he contribution. The Company's contribution is recognised as 
;a n PlmPnsP in thP <;t ;atpmpnt nf Profit ;,nrl I ns<s . 

Defined Benefit Plans 

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined cont ribution 
plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calcu lated by 
est imating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned In the current and prior 
periods, dlscountlna that amount and deductinq the fair va lue of any plan assets. 

The calculation of defined benefit obl igation is performed annually by a quali fied actuary 
using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for 
the Company, the recognised asset is l imited to the present value of economic benefits 
avai lable in the fo rm of any future refunds from the plan or red uctions in fu ture 
contributions to t he plan ('the asset cei ling' ). In order to calculate the present value of 
economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum fu nding requirements. 

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liabi lity, which comprise actuarial gains and 
losses, t he return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if 
any, excluding interest), are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. The Company 
determines the net interest expense (i ncome) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for 
the period by applying t he discount rate used to meas ure the defined benefit obligation at 
the beginning of the annual period to the t hen-net defined benefit liabi lity (asset), taking 
into account any changes in the net defined benefi t liability (asset) during the per iod as a 
result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses 
rPbt Prl tn n pfinPrl hP n Pfit nl ~nc:: ;up rPrnnn ic::Prl in C:::t At P m Pnt nf Prnfit Anrl I nc::c:: 

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the res ulting change in 
benefit t hat relates to past service ('past service cost ' or 'past service gain') or the gain or 
loss on cu rtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises 
aains and losses on t he sett lement of a defined benefit olan when the settlement occurs. 
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Note 111: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.) 

7 Employee Benefits (contd.) 

Defined Benefit Plans (contd.) 

Gratu ity 

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity , a defined benefit retirement plan cove r ing 
eligible employees. The p lan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at 
ret irement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount 
equ ivalent to 15 days to one month salary payable for each completed year of service or part 
thereof in excess of six months depending upon category of employee. Vesting occurs upon 
complet ion of five years of service. The Company has obtained insurance po licies with -the 
Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) and makes an annual contribut ion to LIC for 
amounts notified by LIC. The Company accounts for gratuity benefits payable in future 
based on an independent external actuaria l valuation carried out at the end of the year using 
the projected un it credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recogn ised as Other 
Comprehens ive Income. 

Provident Fund Trust 

In respect of contr ibutio n to the trust set up by the Company, since the Company is 
ob ligated to meet interest shortfall, if · any, with respect to cove red employees , such 
employee benefit plan is class ified as Defined Benefit Plan . Any obligation in this respect is 
measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation. 

(c) Other Long- term Employee Benefits - Compensated Absences 
T he Company p rovides for encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to certain rules. 
The employees are enti tled to accumu late leave subject to certain limits for futu re 
encashment / availment. The Company makes provision for compensated absences based 
on an independent actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year. Actua ria l gains and 
losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

8 Inventories 

(a) Measurement of Inventory 

The Company measures its inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

(b) Cost of Invent ories 

The cost of inve ntories shall comprise a ll costs of purchase, costs of convers ion and other 
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition . 

The costs of purchase of inventories comprise the purchase price, import duties and other 
taxes (other than those subseq uently recoverable by t he entity from the tax ing authorities), 
and t ra nsport, hand ling and other costs d irectly att ributable to the acqu isition of finished 
goods, materials and services. Trade discounts, rebates and other similar items are 
ded ucted in determining the costs of purchase. 

The costs of convers ion of inventories include costs directly related to the units of 
product ion and a syst ematic allocation of fixed and variable production overheads that are 
incurred in convertinq materia ls into fin ished qoods, 

Other costs are included in the cost of inventories o nly to the extent that they are incurred 
in brinqinq the inventories to their present location and condition. 

The cost of inventories is assigned by weighted average cost fo rmula. T he Company uses the 
same cost formu la for a l l inventories having a similar nature and use to the Company. 
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Not e Ill : Sig nifica n t Accounting Polic ies (contd .) 

8 Invento rie s (Contd .) 

(c) Net re a lisa b le value 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in t he ordi nary cou rse of bu s iness less the 
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessa ry to make the sale. Net 
rea li sable value is ascerta ined for eac h item of inventories with refe rence to the s elling prices 
of related fin ishe d products . 

The p rac tice of wri ting in vent or ie s down below cost to net realisable value is consistent with 
the view that asse ts should no t be carried in exces s of amounts expected to be realised from 
their sale or use. Inventories are usually written down to net rea lisable value item by item. 
Estimates o f net realisab le value of fi nished goods and stock- in - trade a re based o n the most. 
reliable evidence available at the t ime the est imates a re made, of the a mount the inventories 
are expected to rea lise. These est imates take into cons ide ra tion fl uctua tions of price or cost 
d irect ly re lating to events occurring after the end of the period to the extent that s uch events 
confirm conditio ns exist ing at the end of the period. Materials and other supplies he ld for use 
in the prod uction of inventories a re not written down be low cost if the fin is hed products in 
which they will be incorporated are expected to be so ld at or above cost . Howeve r, when a 
decl ine in the price of materia ls ind icates tha t the cost of the finished products exceed s net 
realisable value, the mate rials a re written down to net realisable val ue. 

Amou nt of any reversal o f w rite- down o f invento ries s ha ll be recognised as an expense as 
whe n the event occu rs . 

A new assessme nt is made of net realisable value in each subseq uent period. When the 
c ircum stances tha t previous ly caused inventories to be written down be low cost no longe r 
exis t o r whe n there is clear evidence of an increase in net realisable value because of changed 
eco nomic c ircumstances, the amount of the write-down is reversed . Amo unt s s uch reversed 
shall be recong nised as a reduction in the a mount of inve ntories recong nised as an expense 
in the period in which reversal occu rs. 

(d) Valuation of Spare parts, stand- by equipments and servicing equipments 
Spa re pa rts , stand- by eq uipme nt a nd servicing equ ipme nt a re recognised as Property, Pla nt 
a nd Eq uipment if and o nly if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the m will flow to the Company a nd t heir cost can be measu red reliably. Otherwise such item s 
a re c lass ified and recognised a s Inventory. 

9 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash comprises cash on ha nd a nd demand de posits. Cash equivalents are short- te rm , hig hly 
liquid investments tha t are readily convertible to known amo unts of cash and which a re subject 
to an insig nificant ris k of changes in value. Cash eq uivale nts are held for the purpose of meeting 
short - term cash commitments ra ther than for investment o r ot her purposes. For an investment 
to qualify as a cash equ ivalent it must be read ily convertib le to a known amo unt of cash and be 
s ubject to an ins ig nificant ri sk o f changes in value. Therefore, an investme nt normally q ualifies 
as a cash equivalent only when it has a s hort matu rity of, say, three months or less from the date 
of acq ui sition. Bank ove rd rafts which are repayable on dema nd fo rm an integral pa rt of the 
Com pany's cash manageme nt, he nce bank overd rafts are incl uded as a componen t o f 
cash and cas h equ ivalent s. 

10 Government Grants 

Governme nt g rants are assistance by government in the form of transfers of resources to the 
Compa ny in return for past or future compliance with certa in co nditions re la ting to the o perating 
activities of th~ Compa ny. Government grants are not be recognised un til the re is reasonable 
assurance that the Company will comply with the cond itio ns a ttach ing to them a nd the gran ts 
wil l be received . Gove rnme nt g rants are recognised in Statement of Profi t a nd Loss o n a 
systemat ic basis o ver the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the related 
costs for which the grants a re intended to compensate. 
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11 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outf low of 
economic benefits wi ll be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by 
discounting the expected fut ure cash flows (representing the best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre- tax 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. 
Expected fut ure operating losses are not provided for. 

Warranties 

A provision for warranties is recognised when the underlying products or services are sold. 
The provision is based on technical evaluation, historical warranty data and a weighting of all 
possible outcomes by their associated probabilities. 

Restructuring 

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Company has approved a detailed 
formal restructuring plan, and the restructu ring either has commenced or has been 
announced publicly. 

Onerous contracts 
A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived 
by the Company from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its 
obligations under the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the 
present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected 
net cost of continuing with the contract. Before such a provision is made, the Company 
recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract. 

12 Revenue Recognition 

Effective 1 April, 2018, the Company has adopted Ind AS 115 'Revenue from contracts w ith 
customers '. 

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in 
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in 
exchange for those goods or services . Revenue is adjusted for estimated customer returns, 
rebates and other similar allowances. Revenue from sale of goods is recognized as per below 
5 step model: 
• Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer 
• Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract 
• Step 3: Determine the transaction price 
• Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract 
• Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation 

Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognized when (or as) a performance obl igation is satisfied, 
i.e. when 'control' of the goods or services underlying the particu lar performance obligation 
is transferred to the customer,i.e. at which time all the following conditions are satisfied: 
• The company has transferred to the buyer the significant risk & rewards of the ownership 
of the goods 
· The company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually 
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold 
• The amount of revenue can be measured reliably 
• It is probable that econom ic benefits associated with the transaction wil l flow to the 
company and 
The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. 
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Note Ill: Signifi cant Accounting Policies (contd.) 

i 2 Revenue Recognit ion (contd.) 

Interest Income 

Interest income is recognised using the effective int erest method as set out in Ind AS 1 09 -
Financial Instruments: Recogn it ion and Measurement, when it is probable that the economic 
benefits associat ed with the transaction w ill flow to the Company and the amount of t he 
revenue can be measured reliably. The effective interest method is a method of calculating 
the amortis ed cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of financial assets or 
financial liabi lities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expens e over the 
re levant period. 

Royalty Income 

Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the 
re levant agreement when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the 
t ransaction will flow to the Company and the amount of the revenue can be measured 
reliably. 

Dividend Income 

Dividend in come is recognised when right to receive payment is est ablished and it is 
probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the 
Company and the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. 

13 Foreign Currency Transactions 

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the 
Company operates whereas presentation currency is thecurrency in which the financial 
statements are presented. Indian Rupee is the functional as well as presentation currency for 
the Company. 

A foreign currency t ransaction is recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency, 
by applying to the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional 
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 

At the end of each reporting period, fore ign currency monetary items are translated using 
the closing rate whereas non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost 
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; 
and non- monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured. 

Exchange differences arising on t he settlement of monetary items or on translating 
monetary items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial 
recognition during the period or in previous Financial Statements are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise. When a gain or loss on a non­
monetary item is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income, any exchange component of 
that gain or loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. Conversely, when a gain or 
loss on a non- monetary item is recognised in Stat ement of Profit and Loss, any exchange 
component of that gain or loss is recognised in Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 
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14 Taxation 

Income tax 

Income tax comprises cu rrent tax and deferred tax expense. It is recognised in Statement of 
Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combi nation or to an item 
recognised directly in Equity or in Other Com prehensive Income. 

Current tax 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for 
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The 
amount of cu rrent tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received 
after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to Income taxes. It is measured using tax rates 
(and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for 
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax 
cred its. Deferred tax is not recognised for: 

a temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction 
that is not a business combination and that affects neither account ing nor taxable profit or 
loss at the time of the transaction; 

b taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will 
be avai lable against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong 
evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent 
losses , the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that It has sufficient 
taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit 
will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets -
unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each repo rting date and are recognised / reduced to 
the extent that it is probable / no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be 
realised. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset 
is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the reporting date. 

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the 
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying 
amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the 
same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and 
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities wi ll be realised simultaneously. 
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15 'Lease 
Leases of Property, Plant and Equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all t he 
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as fi nance leases. Finan ce leases are capitalised at 
the lease's inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the 
minimum lease payments . The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are 
incl uded in borrowings o r the financia l liabil ities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated 
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the Statement of Profit and 
Loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining 
balance of the liability for each period. 

At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. 
At inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other 
consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those 
for other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If it is concluded for a finance lease 
that it is impracticable to separate t he payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are 
recognised at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset. The liability is reduced as 
payments are made and an imputed finance cost on the liabi lity is recognised using the 
incremental borrowing rate. 

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to 
the Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases 
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on 
straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless t he payments are structured to increase in 
l ine w ith expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost 
increases. 
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16 Financial Instruments 

(a) Recognition and initial measurement 

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All 
other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes 
a party to the contractual terms of the instrument. 

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at Fair 
Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL), transaction cos ts that are directly attributable to its 
acquisition or issue. 

(b) Classification and subsequent measurement 

Financial assets 

On initial recognition, a f inancial asset is measured at 

- amortised cost ; 

- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) - debt investment; 

- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income - equity investment; or 

- FVTPL 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to thei r initial recognition, except if and in the 
period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. 

A financial asset is meas ured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is 
not designated as at FVTPL: 

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect 
contractual cash flows ; and 

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL: 

- the asset is held with in a business model whose obj ect ive is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and 

- the contractual terms of the f inancial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may 
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated 
as FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. 

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are 
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the 
Company may irrevocably designate a f inancial asset t hat otherwise meets the requirements to 
be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly 
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
, OTES TO THE FIV. \ CIAL STATE"1E, TS FOR THE ~EAR E',DED 3 1ST IMRCH, 2020 

Note Ill: Significant Accounting Policies {contd.) 

16 Financial Instruments (contd.) 

(b) Classification and subsequent measurement (contd.) 

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

Financial assets at FVTPL 

Financ ial assets at 
amortised cost 

Debt 
investments at FVOCI 

Equity investments at 
FVOCI 

These assets a re subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and 
losses, including any interest or dividend income, a re recognised in 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 
These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by 
impairment losses. Interest income. foreign exchang e gains and 
losses and impairment are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in Statement of Profit 
,n.< I 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income 
under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and 
losses and impa irment are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition , 
gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

These assets a re subsequently measured a t fair value. Dividends are 
recognised as income in Statement of Profit a nd Loss unless the 
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the 
investment. Other net gains a nd losses are recognised in OCI and are 
not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial liabilities: Classification1 subsequent measure ment and gains and losses 

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is 
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified a s held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated 
as s uch on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net 
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in St atement of Profit and Loss. 
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective inte rest 
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 

(c) Derecognition 

Financial assets 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rig hts to receive the contractual cash flows in a 
t ransaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset 
are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks 
and rewards of ownership and does 
not retain control of the financial asset. 

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its ba lance 
sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, 
the transferred assets are not derecognised. 

Financial liabilities 

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or 
cancelled, or expire. 

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash 
flows under t he modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liabili_ty 
based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying 
amount of the financial liability extinguished and t he new financial liability with modified terms is 
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(d) Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities a re offset and the net amount presented in the balance 
sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the 
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. 



\1ARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
\ OTES TO THE FI\A~CIAL STATE"1ENTS FOR THE YEAP. E\DED 3 1ST '1ARCH, 2020 

No te Ill: Sig nificant Accounting Polic ies (co ntd .) 

17 Borrowing Cost 
The Company capitalises borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition. construction or 
production of a qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset. The Company recognises other 
borrowing costs as an expense in the period in \vhich it incurs them. Borrowing costs are interest and 
ot her costs that t he Company incurs in connect ion with the borrowing of funds including exchange 
differences a rising from fore ig n cu rrency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as a n 
adjustment to inte rest costs. 

A qualifying a sset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use or sale. 

18 Earnings Pe r Share 

Basic earnings per share 

The Company calculates basic earnings per share amounts for profit or loss attributable to ordinary 
equity holders and , if presented, profit or loss from continuing operations attributable to tho se equity 
holders. 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to o rdinary equity holders 
(the numerator) by the weighted average number of ord inary shares outstanding (the de nominator) 
during the pe riod . 

The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period and for all periods 
presented sha ll be adjusted for events, other than the conversion of potential ordinary shares , that have 
changed the number of ordinary shares outstanding without a correspond ing change in resources. 

Diluted earnings per share 

The Company calculates diluted earnings per share amounts fo r profit or loss attributable to ordinary 
equity holders and , if presented, profit or loss from continuing operations attributable to those eq uity 
holders. 

For the purpose of calculating di luted earnings per share, the Company adjusts profit or loss attributable 
to ordinary equity holders, and the weighted average number of shares outstanding, fo r the effects of a ll 
d ilutive potential ordinary s hares, if a ny. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share , the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares calculated for calcula ti ng basic earnings per share and adjusted the weighted average number of 
o rdinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive 
potential ordinary shares into ordinary s hares. Dilutive potential ordi nary shares are deemed to have 
been converted into ord inary shares at the beginning of the pe riod or, if later, the date of the issue of 
t he potential ordinary shares. 
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Note Ill: Sjgnjficant Accounting Policies (contd ) 

19 Impairment Loss 

Impairment of Financial Assets 

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on: 
- fi nancia l assets measured at amortised cost: and 
- financia l assets measured at FV0CI- debt investments. 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised 
cost are c redit-impaired. A financial asset is 'creditimpaired ' when one or more events that 
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have 
occurred. 

In accordance with Ind AS l 09 - Financial Instruments, the Company follows 'simplified 
approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application 
of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in c redit risk. Rathe r, it 
recog nises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit loss at each reporting 
date, right from its initial recognition. 

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the 
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the 
Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could 
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financia l 
assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply 
with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due. 

Impairment of Non Financial Assets 

An impairment loss is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset or a cash­
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash· 
generating unit is the higher of its fai r value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Fair 
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfe r a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Value in use is 
based on the estimated future cash flows, d iscounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate. 

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any ind ication 
that an asset is impaired . In assessing whet her there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired, the Company conside rs External as we ll as Internal Source of Information. If any 
such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount for the individual 
asset. If, and only if, t he recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the 
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss, u nless the asset is carried at revalued amou nt in 
accordance with anot her Standard. 

If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Company 
determines the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs 
(the asset's cash-generating unit). A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of 
assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other 
assets or grou ps of assets. The Company recognises impairment loss for a cash-generating 
unit if, and only if, the recoverab le amount of the cash-generating unit is less t han the 
carrying amount of the cash-generating unit. The Company allocates impairment loss of cash­
generat ing units first to the carrying amou nt of goodwill allocated to the cash-generating 
units, if any, and then, to the ot he r assets of the cash-generating units pro rata on the basis 
of the carrying amount of each asset in the cash-generating unit. These reductions in carrying 
amounts shall be treated as impairment losses on individual assets and recognised 
accordingly. 



MARPOL PRIVATE LI M ITED 
NOTES TO THE FINA NCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

Note Ill: Significant Accou nting Policies (contd.) 

20 Measurement of fair values 

A number of the Companies accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of 
fai r values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities . 

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair 
va lues. This includes a valuation team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all 
significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports direct ly to the 
Chief Financial Officer. 

The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation 
adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to 
meas ure fair values, then the valuation team assesses the evidence obtained from the third 
parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, 
including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classi fied. 

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs 
used in the valuation techniques as follows: 

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabi lities 

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3: i nputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs) 

When measuring the fair va lue of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market 
data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fai r va lue of an asset or a liability fall 
into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised 
in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is 
significant to the entire measurement. 

The Company recogn ises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the 
reporting period during which the change has occurred. 

21 Investment in Subsidiaries 
A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Company. 
The Company accounts for the investments in equity shares of subsidiaries at cost in 
accordance wi th Ind AS 27 - Separate Financial Statements. 



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 

Note 1: Property, Plint and Equipment 

Gross Block 

Descr iptio n As at 
Additions Deduct ions 

\st April, 2019 

Leasehold Land 29,98,799 - -
(29,98,799) - -

Bulldlnas 3,33,33.490 32,53.448 -
(3,28,23,838) (5,09,652) -

Plant and Ec1ulomcnts 20,36,84,54 8 2.47 ,00,362 -
(20,36,84,548) - -

Furniture and Fixtures 70,48.971 45,500.00 -
(70,48,971) - -

Vehicles 10 .47 ,246 - -
(42,95,152) - (32,47,906) 

Office EqulpmenLs 81,80,304 10,990 -
(81,80,304) - -

Computers 67 ,69, 122 2,42,226 -
(63,39, 122) (4 ,30,000) -

Total Tanglble Assets 26,30,62, 481 2.82,52,526 -
(26,53,70,/34) (9,39,652) (32.47,906) 

1.1. Figures In the brackets are the corresponding figures In r espect or the previous year. 

As at As at 
31st Mar 2020 1 St Aprll, 2019 

29.98,799 G,62,960 
(29,98,799) (6, 14,047) 

3,65,86,939 1,84.-11,427 
(3,33,33,490) (1,73,08,874) 

22.83,84,909 18,07,35,123 
(20,36,84.548) (17,3 1.19,406) 

70,94,47 1 70.15,801 
(70,48,97 1) (69, 91,683) 

10.47,246 9,21 ,796 
(1 0 ,47,246) (40,31,498) 

81 ,91,294 79,59,267 
(81 ,80,304) (77,36,545) 

70,1 1,347 64,69,230 
(67,69,122) (57,46,550) 

29, 13,1 5,006 22,27,05,604 
(26,30,62,480) (21,55,48,604) 

1.2. No Items of Propeny, Plant and Equlprnenl were pledged as secur ily for liabililies cluring any part of lhe currem and comparalive periods. 

Note 2: Other lntanglble Assets 

Gross. Block 

Description As at 
Addit ions Deductions 

As at As at 
I st April, 20 19 3 1st Marcl1. 2020 I Sl April, 2019 

SoflwMe 3 1,30,375 - - 3 1,30,375 23,33,970 
(31,30,375) - (31,30,375) (2 1,43,901) 

Total Other Intangible Assets 3 1,30,375 - - 31,30,375 23,33,970 
(3 1,30,375) - - (31,30,375) (21,43,901) 

2. 1. Figures In the brackets arc the corresponding f igures in respec.t of the previous year. 

ht ftnpN'' 

Accumulated Depreciation Net Blt.xJ;: 

Additions DccluctiOJlS 
/\S,ll \S,ll 

3 1st ~la r 2020 3 I St t,.1,11 10/0 

48,903 - 7, 11,86) n.~'-"'') 
(48,913) - (6,6l,%0) (I:, :'-,_t\ JI\\ 

12,50,08'1 - 1.96.<J l ,5 1 I l.68.<t'i 1 )I 

(11 ,32,553) - ( 1,84 ,4 1 1)/) { I ,.18,'1) ()t, J) 

87,113 ,639 - 18,9 1.18./bl J.89.rn1 ! I/ 
(76,15.717) - (18.07,JS, l 23} (l,2{) 1Q, IA) 

24. 118 - 70.)9.9 19 '., l.'1'l) 

(24. 118) - (/0,1).801) (-; i, l /0) 

30,781 - 9.S2.'.>71 ()) ,{)(,l) 

(85, 250) (31.94,952) (9,21 ,7%) (I ,JS, l f10j 

2,00,473 - 81.59.140 ; J ,'>'> 1 
(2,22, 722) - (79.59,267) (),) 1.0 : /) 

4,73,363 - 69,-12591 (i8/'i'1 
(7,22,679) (6•1,69,279) c2.ns•J1) 

1,07,71,:161 ) -I.Jt..l,/6.%h 'i ,tt-l.HUI II 
(98,>I , 95 2) (31,9•1,9'.>l) (U,U.0>.b0,I) (,1 ,08,',b.K/ /} 

Accumul ated Amortisation Nr:t_Rlock. 

Aclclitlons OeduCIIOll S 
i\S ,ll ,,., ,1 ! 

3 1 ~l Marc h. 7010 ) I 'lit 1\!, lt{ It. /()){) 

1.~7.54] - )<l ,tll .',II b . !H,Hh/ 

(1 ,90,069) (ZJ 13,9/0) (7 '.lU. 10',) 

1,57,54 3 - ;>4 ,91 ,'.J 13 C1 .J8.M1J 
(1 ,90,069) - (.H.H.Y/0) (/,'lb. 10',) 



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR PERIOD ENDED 31 ST \1ARCH 2020 

\ote 3 · Other Financial Assets As at As at 
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 

..,1 '>t'::.utet: ;:: ·::'.! C~.>rh:d~r~d Good 

r 1'\ed Depos t \\.1t h Ba·1i.. (~latu11t\ mo,e than 12 ~lonths) 6,65 , 151 

Total - 6,65, 151 

Note 4 : Current Tax Assets As at As at 
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 

'Income Ta:\ (\Jet of PIO\ISIOllS) 23.09,542 1.62,016 

!Total 23 09 542 l 62 016 

Note S: Inventories As at As at 
3 1st March 2010 31st March 2019 

Raw Materials 5,61,98,228 5,35,48,330 
WorJ..-in-proqress 91,11,072 87,57,553 
Finished Goods 4,08, 12,530 4,03,24,577 
Stores and Spares 2,74,34,468 2,43,09, l 04 

Total 13 35 56299 12 69 39 564 

5.1 No inventones were pledged as securnv for hab1llties during the current and comparable period. 
5.2 Nil amount of lnven1ones were \Witten down to net realisable value during the current and comparable period. 
Surnlarlv, Nil amount of reve,sal of wnte down "as accounted durmg the current and comparable periods. 

Note 6: Trade Receivables As at As at 
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

Secured , Considered Good - -
Unsecured, Considered Good 14,94,01 ,586 15,65,61 ,249 
Siqn1ficant increase in Credit Risk 

Credit Impaired 1,59,61,429 1,3 7,61 ,429 
Less. Loss Allowance (1 5961 429) (1 3761429) 

Total 14 94 0 1 586 156561249 

Note 7: Cash and cash equivalents As at As at 
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

I Cash on hand 46,008 61,746 
Banks Balances 18,87,480 7,05,796 

!Total 19 33 488 7 67 541 

Note 8: Bank Balance other t han Cash and cash equivalents As at As at 
31st March 2020 3 1st March 2019 

I fixed Depos,t with Bank - 32,73,054 

!Total - 32 73 054 

Note 9: Loans As at As at 
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 

!Unsecured and Considered Good 
Security Deposits 6,41,725 10,97,356 

!Total 6 41 725 10 97 356 

Note 1 0: Other Current Assets As at As at 
31st March 2020 3 1st March 2019 

Unsecured and Cons,dered Good 
Balances with Indirect Tax Authorities 36,56,780 32,46, 136 
Trade Advances - 16, 15,133 
Prepaid Expenses 18,76,424 19,78.350 
Other Receivable 5,420 13,702 

Total 55 38 624 68 53 321 



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR PERIOD ENDED 31 ST MARCH 2020 

Note 11: Share Cap ital 

I .Authorised Share Capital (Rs) 
Par Value per Share (Rs) 
Number of Equity Shares 

2. lssued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up (Rs) 

Par Value per Share (Rs) 
Number of Equity Shares 

Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of 
shares: 

Kansai Nero lac Pa ints Limited 
Kamlesh A. Pai Panandiker (HUF) 
Vishvanath . A. Pai Panandiker (HUF) 
Shambhu A. Pai Panandiker (HUF) 
Shanu A. Pai Panandiker (HUF) 
Ramchandra A. Pai Panand iker (HUF) 
Vishvanath P Panand ike r Tdg.& Inv.Co. Pvt. Ltd. 
Veda P Panand ikerTdg . & Inv. Co . Pvt . Ltd. 
Shanu P PanandikerTrdg. & Inv. Co. Pvt. Ltd. 
Ramchand ra P Panand iker Tdg .& Inv.Co.Pvt.Ltd. 
Atmaram P PalondicarTrdg. & Inv. Co. Pvt. Ltd. 

4.Aggregated number of bonus share JSsued during 
the period of five years immediate ly preceding t he 
reponing date by capitalisation of security premium 
reserve 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

% 

100% 
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

5,00,00,000 
10 

50,00,000 

2,99,52 ,000 

10 
29,95,200 

No of 
Shares 

29,95,200 
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

In Rupees 

As at 
31st March , 2019 

% 

-
13.33% 
12 .02% 
9.01% 
8.97% 
8.97% 
8.65% 
8.09% 
6.61 % 
6.61 % 
6.09% 

5 ,00,00,000 
10 

50,00,000 

2,99,52,000 

10 
29,95 ,200 

No of 
Shares 

-
3,99,200 
3,60,000 
2 ,70,000 
2,68,800 
2,68,800 
2,59,200 
2,42,400 
1,98,000 
1,98,000 
1,82,400 

Nil 

5.The Company has issued one class of shares , i.e. equity shares, which enjoys similar rights in respect of 

voting , payment of dividend and repayment of capital. On w ind ing up of the Company, the holders of equ ity 

shares w ill be entitled to receive the residual assets of t he Company, remaining after distribution of all 

p referential amou nts in proponion to t he number of equity shares held. 

6. Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding: 

Number of shares at the begin ning of the yea r 
Issued du ring the year 

29,95,200 29,95,200 

Number of shares at the end of the year 29,95,200 29,95",200 

?.Capital Management: 
For the purpose of the Company's capital manage ment , capital includes issued equity share capi tal and all 
other equity reserves attributab le to the equity holders of the Company. The Company's policy is to maintain 
a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future 
development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital, as well as the levels of dividends 
to equity shareholders. The Company is not subject to any eXlernally imposed capital requirements. 
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\ote 12 - Other Equity 
General Reserve Retained EJrnlngs Tota l 

&.ilanceu at lstAorll. 2010 83.92,356 3.71 12.808 4.58,05.16< 

Profit for the ye.r 1.6851.928 1.68.51.928 

Sa.lance u at 31st March. 2019 ., ., "' >< .,. no, 

Profft for the period - 2.89.66,835 2.89,66,835 

1.t.lancc as at 31st March. 2020 83,92,356 8,32,31,570 9, 16,23,926 

Note J 3· Income Taxes Year ended 31 Year ended 31 
Much, 2020 March, 2019 

.. The m.1Jor components of income tax expense for the year arc as under: 

(i) 
Income t ax recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Current tuc. 
In respect of curre111 yea, 58.31.877 44,00,000 

Deferred t.u:: 
In respec t of cunet11 year 1,39,445 (14,75,464) 

Income t.u: expense recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss 59,71,322 29,24,536 

(ii) Income tax expense recognised In OCI 
Deferred t.tx expense o n rcme,nurements of defined benefit plans - -
Income tax cxpc;nse recognised In OCI - -

.. Reconclllatlon of t&.x expense And the accounting proflt for the year Is as 
under: 

Profit before 1.-ix 3,49,38, 157 1,97,76,464 

Income t.tX expe11secakul.-i1ed at 27 .a~ (P.Y. 34.944:b1 97,19,79S 69,10,688 

Olhers (37,48.473) (39,86, 152) 

TD{;al 59,71,322 29,24,536 

Tax cxoense as oer St.ttement or Proflt and Loss S9 71 322 29 24 536 

In pursu<ince to sec1ion I 15BAA or Income Tax Act, 1961 announced ~ • Go\lernmenl of India 1hrough Taxation Law (Amendment) 0 1dinance, 2019, the Companv has an 
i rre\:ocable option of shirting 10 lowe, Corporate Tax Rate at 22S6 plus .-ipphcable Surcharges and Ccss and simultaneous ly forego cer1ain lax incentives including the 
c1ddi1ional depredation on plant and mac hfnerv acquired/ to be acquired by the Como.-inv. Accordtnotv. the Comp.-iny shall excerciSe thiS option for current Ffnanclal Ye.-ir. 
Hence !he company has computed !he lax expenses of the current Financial Year as per the lower CorJX)rate Income Tax Regime announced under Se<: 115BAA or the 
lncomeTaxAct, 1961. 

c. The maJOI" componcnu of deferred tax (llabllltles) / assets arising on account of timing diffc,cnces are as follONS: 

Balince Profit and 00 Salance 
Puticulars Sheet Loss Sheet 

01.04.2018 2018-2019 2013-2019 31.03.2019 

Difference between written down value/ capi tal work in progress of PropeftV, 16,78,618 (14,75,464) - 2,03, 1S4 
Plant and Equipment as per the bOoks of accoums and Income T.-ix Act, 1961. 

Deferred tax (expense) / Income 
liua. n..t ..... - tax"· ·"' . 1678618 (14 75 4641 - 2 03 154 

Balance Profit and 00 Sa.lance 
Plnlculars Sheet oss <h-

01.04.201g 2019-2020 2019- 2020 31 .03.2020 

Difference between written down value / capital work in prog1ess of Propertv, 2,03, 154 1,39,445 - 3.42.599 
Pt.un and Equipment as per the bool:s of accoums and Income Tax Act. 1961. 

Deferred t ax (o:pcnse) / Income 
I 1.i..t oete .... - tax 

..... ,_ 
2 03 154 I 39 445 - 3 42 599 



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINA NCIAL STATEMENTS FOR PERIOD ENDED 31 ST MARCH 2020 

In Rupees 

Nole 14: Borrowings As at As at 
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

Working Capital Loan 14,20,04,82 5 1 0,50,05,546 

Total 14,20,04 ,82 5 10,50,05,546 

Note·, 5: Trade Payables As at As at 
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

Trade Payables 
Payables to Micro and Small Enterprises* - -
Payables to Others 12,32,73,779 14,43,36,503 

Total 12,32,73,779 14,43,36,503 

*Based on the information and explaination avai lable with management, there are no amounts due to the 
suppliers covered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. 

Note 16: Other Financial Llabllltles As at As at 
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

Trade Deposits 32 ,44,340 32,94,339 

Creditors for Capital Goods 1,28,775 8,92,841 

Total 33,73, 115 41,87, 180 

Note 1 7: Other Current Liabilities As at As at 
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

Other Statutory Payables 9,49,852 36,38,698 

Trade Rece ivables with Credit Balance 9,69,886 9,94,768 

Total 19, 19,738 46,33,466 

Note 18: Provisions As at As at 
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 

Provision for Compensated Absences 6,54,845 7,60,095 
Provis ion for Gratuity 24,08,320 24,90,703 

Total 30,63, 165 32,50,798 



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 

In Rupees 

Note 19: Revenue from Operations Year ended Year ended 
31st March, 2020 31st March , 2019 

Sale of Products 58,88,80,503 68,64,87, 186 

Other Operating Revenues 
Sale of Scrap 13,93, 155 25,06,6 11 

Others - 44,492 

13,93,155 25,51,103 

Total 59 02,73 659 68,90 3& 289 

Note 20: Other Income Year ended Year ended 
3 1st March 2020 31st March 201 9 

Interest Income 
Interest on Loans and Deposit 29,767 1,95,170 

29,767 1,95 ,170 

Other Non operating Income 
Insurance C laims Received - 2,68,005 

- 2,68,005 

Total 29 767 4 63 175 



W\RPOL PRIVATE Ll\11TED 
,oTE:- TO THE FI \AJ\CIAL 5TATE\1E,'TS FOR PERIOD E\ DED 31 ST MARCH 2020 

In R.u;:>ees 
\ote 21 Cost of \1;aterl;a!s Consumed Ve.1r~ded Year endc:d 

31st March, 2020 31st March. 2019 

Ra, .. \latenal Comumec! 

Openwg s:od.. S.21,87.161 3.56.23.098 

.\dd r'tuchase 38.05.17.655 5 I .19.51.705 
Less Clos ma Stoel.. 5.47.25.288 S.21.87.161 

37.19.79.528 49,53.87,64 2 

Pad..ing Malena! Consumed 
Opening Stoel.. 13.61, 189 5,45,346 
Add Prnchase 1,39,98,480 1,60.78,403 
Less Cl~i11g Stoel.. 14,72,981 13.61 ,189 

1,38,86,688 1,52,62,560 

Tot>! 391866216 51 06 so 202 

Note 22: Changes In Inventories of finished Goods, Stock-in-
trade and work-In- progress 

Opening Stoel,,, 
finished Goods 4 ,03,24,577 2,36,03,672 
Work-ln- proqress 87,57,553 1,22, 16,234 

4,90.82,130 3,58, 19,906 
Less· Closing Stock 

Finished Goods 4 ,08,12.530 4,03.24.577 
work- ln-p1oq1ess 91.11.072 87.57.553 

4,99,23 ,602 4.90.82, 1 30 

Total (8,41,472) (1,32,62,224) 



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR PERIOD EN DED 31 ST MARCH 2020 

Note 23: Employee Benefits Expense 

Salaries and Wages 
Contribution lo Provident and Othe r Funds 
Staff Welfare Expense 

Tota l 

Note 24: Depreciation and Amortisation 

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 
Amortisation on Other Intangible Assets 

Total 

Note 25: Other Expenses 

Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts 
Power and Fuel 
Repairs to Buildings 
Repairs to Machinery 
Freight and Forward ing Charges 
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 
Rent 
Legal & Professional Fees 
Insurance 
Miscellaneous Expenses 

Total 

Note 25.1 : Payment to Statutory Auditors' 
Auditors' Remuneration excluding Service Tax/ GST 
(Included in Miscellaneous Exnenses in Note 25) 
As Auditor 
Statutory Aud it Fees 

Report under Section 44AB of the Income tax Act, 1961 
In other capacity 
Ce rtiflcatlo n 
Others 
Total 

Year ended 
31st March. 2020 

3,60 ,09. 1 S9 
69,32.44 7 
26,48,529 

45590135 

Year ended 
31st March 2020 

1,07,71.361 
1,57,543 

1 09 28 904 

Year ended 
31st March 2020 

I ,3 I ,06,85 I 
2.45,52. 140 

4,04,631 
67,96,687 

2,14,46,766 
7 ,04,059 

21 ,90,813 
16,72,698 
13,75,923 

2,42, 11 ,790 

9 64 62 357 

4,68,890 

-

58,133 
-

5 27 023 

In Rupees 

Year ended 
30th March 20 19 

4,05,59.6 I 2 
5 6,69. 164 
26.73. 167 

4 89 01 943 

Year ended 
30th March 2019 

98,51 ,9 52 
1,90,069 

1 00 42 021 

Year ended 
30th March 20 19 

1,63,20,926 
2 ,88,26,058 

1,63,073 
49,60,524 

2,38,81,351 
2 , 18,602 

I 6,90,494 
13,24,578 

7,47,722 
2,57,48,499 

10 38 81 825 

4,33,800 

-

58, 133 
-

4 91 933 



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 

Note 26: Contingent Liabilities and commitments (to the 
ex tent not provided for) 

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt: 

Sales Tax & Income Tax 

The Company has made adequate provisions in the accounts 
for claims against the Company related to direct and indirect 
taxe.s matters, except for certain claims not acknowledged as 
debts, and Assessment Year 2017- 20 18 Rs. 11,62,460/- LESS 
@20% Paid Rs. 2,32,492 /- = 929968 
Sales Tax 
Amount totalling to Rs. 59,66,949/- from the Sales Tax 
Au thorities, a demand of sales tax for non-submission of Form 
'C' for the year 2004- 05. 
Income Tax 
Amount totalling to Rs. 27,70,026/- from the Income Tax 
Authorities, a demand notice for assessment year 2003- 2004 
Rs. 14,57,756 /- and 2010- 11 Rs. I3,I2,270/ -
The Company's management is of the opinion that ultimate 
liabi lity in respect of these litigations shall not exceed the 
amount provided in books of account, and shall not have any 
material adverse effect on the Company's operation and 

Excise 
Appeal No. E/115 /20 I1 and E/ 579/ 20I I Against OIA No. 
GOA/ CEX/ G5K/ I 13 & I 14 Dt.30. I I. IO - Excise duty difference 
of Himachal Pradesh Bad di 

Duty and Interest 
Duty & Interest to be paid for non- fulfilment of Export 
Obligation against EPCG Licence No 73000 I 054I 1.9.2010 and 
1730001054 /1 5.9.2010 as per letter no S- 99/ 25 / 20 I 8 - Appg 
(Gr- 7)4896 dt 6.8.2019 

Corporate guarantee 
Counter Guarantees to bank in respect of Bank Guarantees 
issued to government authorities and others 

Letter of Credit opened with HDFC Bank, Margao, Goa 

Note 27: Earnings Per Equity Share 

Numerator: 

Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (~ in Crores) 

Denominator: 
Weighted Average Number of ordinary shares at the 
beginning and end of the year 

Basic and Diluted Earninas oer Eauitv Share (In f) 

Year ended 
31st March, 2020 

96,66,943 

27,50,923 

1,06,99,005 

35,34,000 

5 3, 77,848 

2, 13,29,714 

Year ended 
31st March 2020 

2,89,66,835 

29,95,200.00 

9.67 

In Rupees 

Year end ed 
31st March, 20 19 

&7,36,975 

27,50,923 

35,34,000 

1,22,I8,4IB 

2, 72,40, 316 

Year ended 
31st March 2019 

1,68,5 1,928 

29,95,200.00 

5.63 



W\RPOL PRIVATE U'ilTED 
~OTES TO THE FIS:A\CIAL STATE\1E',TS FOR PERIOD E\DED 31ST \ \ARC,! 2020 

,ote U· Related Party Disclosures 

.l, '<',t'l">?d pa;!\ ', 'I ;lt'i')O Qr ~1:h(\ 1h,c1• \ d'"d JO• f> ~W•!\ tho:'.!~ ;:repdflll:J !lS ;1.;•1:.01 '):,Her-e··•; 

,c1) ·, pe!'\on o ~ c o<,e member o' •··at pel'\on·s fil~d\ 15 reidted ~o a --eport1--:g er,Ht\ f tha· p1!~011 
(:) has contra' or Jomt :::om col of 11:e 1e;ion111g er111:\ 
(11) has \lq111fo:.t": mnllen:::e O\er the reporung e,1,t\. 01 
1,111) 1<, a mPmh,.r nl lh,. kl"\ "!\i'l!'<llJemenl p~:,oi 11" d thP ft1'Jlfl"' ,ng t"11 l1t~ 01 of a parf"nt ot !hi" rPport,n9 i>n111~ 

(bl An enrn~ ,s related to a reporti119 ent,t\ rf ,111'r of 1he follo-..,,mg cona 11011., appl1C$ 
(1} The enll!\ ar:d 1he reponmg enut\ are members o' 1he same group (\\h1ch means thal each parent, subsidial) and 

fe!IO\-.. subs1di,1r\ ts rclatec: to the others). 
{ul One ecllltJ ,s ,w asso<Late or Joint \.Clllure of the other enlll'\ !or an a,;soc1ate or JOlnl ~~niurc of d member of a 
qroup of ,duch the other e1111t\ is a member). 
(tu) 80t h en1111e, ,ue10111t ventures of rhe same 1h1rd pan,. 
(1v) One enlit\• 1s a Jomt veniure of a 1hrrd e1H1I\ and the other emlly 1s an associa1e of the third emit\ . 
M The enrny 1s a pos1-employment beneht plan for 1he benefit o f employees of either 1he reporting enrny or an entity 
related to t he report ing entity. ir the reporting enmy is itself such a plan, 1he sponsormg employe~ are also related 10 

1he 1eport 111g cm11y. 
(v1) The e nut) ,s con1rolled or Joi1111y co111rolled by a person 1de11t1r1ed 111 (a). 
(\<1i) A person iden11f1ed m (a)(ij has significan1 influence O\<er the ent ity or is a member of the "-e<i' management 
pe~onnel or the en111r• (or of a parent of the enmy). 
(vm) The entity, or any member of a group of which 11 ts a part. provides key management personnel servtees to the 
reporting entity or to 1he parent of 1he reponing entit\'· 

A related patty transaction ,s a transfer of resources, services or obligations betw~n a repomng eruitj• and a related 
party, regardl~s of whether a price 1s charged. 

Parent and ultimate controlling entitv 

Name % Shareholdina Type Principal Place of 
2020 2019 ACIIVlties lncornnr:.11011 

Kansai Paints Co. ltd, Japan Ultimate Manufacturing Japan 
0 0 controlling Paints 

Kansai Nerolac Pairus Ltd. 100 100 Parent Manuracturmg India 
p,,_,. 

Kansai Pamts Co., ltd. ts the immediate and ultimate holding company of Kansai Nerolac Pa1111s Ltd. and is based and 
listed in Japan. Fmanc1al S1atemcnts of Kansai Paints Co., Ltd. are avai lable in public domain. 

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and respons ib1l1ty for planning, directing and 
controlltng the ae1ivities of the enti1y, directly or indirectly. indud1119 any director (whether executi\.e or otherwise) or 
that entity. Key management personnel i ncludes Mr. Prashant 0. Pai, Mr. G. T. Govindarajan and Mr. Rohit P. 
Panandiker. 

Related Partv T ransactions· In Rupees 

RPlation 0 ,n, o 
Sale of finished goods/ Intermediates 

-Kansai Nerolac Pa1111s Ltd. Parent entity 2,64,64,454 6 ,08,09,941 

Purcha,se of Goods 

-K.l~a• Nerolac Paints ltd. Parent entity 8,48,54,45 I 4814S325.00 

Amount of outstanding balances, including commitments, 
thei r terms and condit ions, including whether they ... 
secured, and the nature of the c.onsideraUon to be provided 
in settlement 

Receivable as at Year End 
Kansai Nerolac Pairus Ltd. Parent enlitv 42,61.660 62.38.265 

Payable as at Year End 
Kansai Nerolac Pa101s Ltd. Parent en1i1v S,6S.73.443 4 ,85.54.648 
Kev Mana11ement Personnel 
(al short-term emplovee benefits - 24 ,09,120 

Related Partv Transactions: 
Related pany 1ransaction~ were made on terms equivalent to those 1ha1 prevail in an arm's leng1h transactions. 



YIARPOL PRIVATE LI\IITED 
\OT:5 TO THE fl\A\CIAL 5TATEY1E\T5 FOR PERIOD EI\DED 115T \IARCH 2020 

\lote 29· Financial Instruments· Fair values and Risk \1anagement 

(A) Accounting Classifications and Fair Values 

Th~ fcllcMi'lg tab:e S'JC\\S :ne ca,r\·•ng amounts ancl 'a 1 ,a \,es of f111anc1al asse~'.i anc' ·a1K1a :ablhttes. mclucing then le-.el,; In tne fa,r , .rve h1e1a1Ci'l\ 

I Year I 
I Other financial assets ' I 

At FVTPL HabUitlP.S - ~mortised Levell I LeveJ 2 I Level 3 Total 

Financial Assets not measured at Fair Va.lue 

Non-current ..\ ssets Other I 2020 I - I - I I I -
F1nanc1al Assets (Note 3) I 2019 I - I 6.65.151 I I I 6,6S. 151 

CuuentAsseff Trade Receivables I 2020 I - I 10.94,01 ,586 I I I 14,94.01.586 
(Note6) I 2019 I - I 15,65,61,249 I I I 1.5.65,61.249 

Current Assets· Cash and Cash I 2020 I - I 19,33.488 I I I 19,33,488 
Equrvalent (Note 7) I 2019 I - I 7.67.541 I I I 7,67,541 

Curren t Assets: Bank Balances I 2020 I - I - I I I -
other than Cash and cash I 2019 I I 32,73,054 1 I I Eauivalent (Note 8) - 32,73,054 

Current Assels. Loans (Note 9) I 2020 I - I 6,41J25 I I I 6,41,725 

I 2019 I - I 10,97.356 I I I 10,97,3S6 

Flna.nclal Uabllities not measured .u Fair Value 

Current Liabilities: Borrowings I 2020 I - I 14,20,04,825 I I I 14,20.04,82S 
(Note 14) I 2019 I - I IO,SO,OS,S46 I I I 10. SO,OS,S46 

Current Uab1l1t1es· Trade Paya~e I 2020 I - I 12,32.73.779 I I I 12,32,73,779 
(Note IS) I 2019 I - I 14,43,36,503 I I I 14.43,36,503 

Current Ua.bilities· 01her Financial I 2020 I - I 33,73,1 15 1 I I 33,73,115 
Liabilities (Note 16) I 2019 I - I 41 ,87,180 I I I 41 ,87,180 



\1ARPOL PRIVATE Ll\11TED 
\OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME\ TS FOR PERIOD E\!DED 31 ST MARCH 2020 

t\?te 29 Elnancial Instruments' Fair values and Risk Management (contd,) 
(8) Financial Risk Management 

.,.ht-(:::,· 1pa n, has e, poswe :o the to:10\\inc;; 11 sl..s .111s111g from fu1anoa . instr uments 
- C1ed1: Risk 
- Llqmd1l\ R,sJ.. 
• \1a1J...et R1sl 

(i) Risk Management Framework 

R1s.l.. Management Cornrnettee ove1see; the management of these ml...s. Manage ment 1s ..,upporled bv Risi,. \lanagemem Comnutlee thataclv1ses on 
financial risks and 1he approp1iate f1nanc1al nsi.. go\ernance frame'l\'o rJ.. for the Companv. The Risk \lanagement Comn11ttee pt0v1des assurance to the 
managemem that Company's nsl.. act1\ 1ties are go\.erned b\ appropriate poltoes and procedures and 1h.1.t financial nsl-s are 1dent1f1ed, measured and 
managed m accordance with the Cornpanv's polmes and 11sl.. obJecti\e~. 

The Company's Rist.. Management Policies are established to 1denI1fy and analvses the nsl..s faced by the Company to set appropnate nsk. hm1ts and 
controls and to monuor risl..s and adherence to hm1ts. R1-.I.. M;uugement Pohc1es and SysIems are re\1C\\ed regularlv to reflec1 changes m market 
cond1t1ons and the Company's ac11v1tIes. The Company, through its trainmg and management -.ta .. ndard-. and procedure-., aims to mamtain a 
d1se1pl1ned and constructive control envIromnent 111 which all employees understand their role-. 
.a.nd obligations. 

(ii) Credit Risk 

Cred11 Risk Is the mk of financial loss to the Company 1f a cus1omer or counterparty to a financial i nstrument fails to meet it-. comractual obhgation-., 
and arhes principally from the Company's receivables from customers, loans and investments in debt securities. The carr\,;ng amounts of financial 
assets Iepresem the maximum credit risk e'<posure. 

Trade Receivables and Loans: 

The Company's exposure to credit risk is mfluenced mainly by the mdividual characteristics of each customer. The Risk Managemelll Committee has 
established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for credinvorthiness before the Company's standard payment and 
delivery terms and condiuons are offered. The Company's review includes fmancial statements, credit .agency information, industry information .and 
in some cases bank references. Sales hmits are estabhshed for ea.ch customer and re-..1iewed 
constantly. Any sales exceeding those Hm1ts requne approval from the management. 

Financial Instruments and Cash Deposits 

Credit risks from balances with banks and fmancial institutions Is managed by the Company' s Treasury Department in acc:ordance with the 
Company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterpartv. 
The hmus a,e set to minimise the concemration of risks and therefore mnigate Financial loss thmugh counterparry's potential failure to make 
payments. 

(iii) Liquidity Risk 

Liquidi ty risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated wi th its financial liab1ltt1es that are settled by 
del1ver111g cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient 
hqu1dity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without Incumng unacceptable losses or riskmg 
damage to the Company's reputation. 

Maturities of Financial Liabilities: 
The table below analyse the Comp.a.ny's financial liabilities into relevant maturing grouping based on their contractual maturities: 

In Ruoees 

Year ended 
On Upto 3 months to 6 months l year to 3 years and 

Total 
demand 3 months 6 mo nths to 1 year 2 yean above 

Sorrowmgs 31 - 03-2020 14 20 04 825 14 20 04 825 
l-"3-2019 10 50 05 546 10 SO OS 546 

Trade Payables 31-03-2020 12 32 73 779 12 32 73 779 
31 -03- 2019 14 43 36 503 14 43 36 503 

Other Financial 31-03-2020 l 28 775 32 44 340 3373115 
Liabilities 31 - 03-2019 8 ,92,841 32 94 339 41 ,87,180 

(iv) Market Risk 

Market risk is t he risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market price 
comprises three types of risks mterest rate risk, currency r isk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity price risk. The obJect,ve 
of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. In respect of 
monetarv assets and liabi lities denominated in foreign currencies, the Company' s policy is to ensure that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable 
level. 



~Ai<?OL PRIVATE ll\HTED 
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•'-wll! 29- Ei?i"►li l 1□ urumeon- fair valuu and g,ill; MiDiRIHJltnl kootd > 

(C) V.tlua tion ttchnlqu u ;and s ignificant unobstrY.tble Inputs 

V.tkJ.tUon tr.chnlqufl: S)Qnifiunt uno!>s~rvable 
lnpub 

lnter-rel.ttionshlp bet'N«n 
sh;in lfiunt unobsernble Inputs .tnd fair value menurement 

Other '-01'1-currE'fll ,nuts 
IT'l\'C'SU'Tlent measured .ti 
offl10fhif<f CO!>I 

Dn.coun1ed cash l loY.s The ,-a!ual!on model - Foree.tu A.Mui.I re,.enue Gemtr.tll>,, a changes In lhe annual ,eo.·enue growth u1e 1s 

Cuuen1 inveHmena - 1n 

mutual funds 

caa1c!<H the o-01Hh accompanied sm1J.u dun()!? in 
pr~ent ,·.1h1e of e \ pecl@d recl!ip11p,1,men1 - roreus t ESIOA gro~th mMgin EBIOA m.1rgin 
d iscounted using approp11.;11e dlscounung - Rid. ,1dJUslmf:nt d lscoun1ed 
'-'les.. rate 

The f,tn values of uwes tm@nts m Not APPhc.able NOi apphcable 
mutual fund units is based on the ne1 use: 
1•alue l'NAV') as uaied by the Issuers of thMe 
m utual fund units in 1he published 
su.1emen1s -'S at Balance Sheet date. NAV 

represents the price oil v.hk h lhe is1,ue, " 111 
issue furlhtr unit$ of mutlUI fund and lhe 
price al \\hich iHuEH wttl redl'!t.m such unils 
from lhe inve!.lon 

The Compa.ny d ettttmined 1he fair va.lue musurements of inv('l;lments -unquoled ca1egonsed In Level 2 based on price a.17eed In a ule tramaction ber,ireen unrel.\ted parties. 

C~ 1,·i11g amounts of ush a.nd cash equiv..ilents, tr..ide ,ecetvoib!M, loan~ a.nd 1tade payablei. a.s at 31st Ma.rch, 2019 ;md 31st March. 2018 app101dmoile the fair value. Difference 
between ca.trying amounts and f.lr values of bank deposiu. earma.11..ed bala.nc('I; v.ith banl..s. Olher Ona.ncla.l asset~. other rlnaocioil liabilllies .ind borrowings subsequently 
mea~ured at .amortised cost 1s no t significant In uch of thl" \'eilrs pr6enled. 
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